Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 1 of 72
santa clara
-y county
libraryaistic

Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY BOARD

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
Tuesday, May 15, 2018 at 2:30 p.m.
1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008, Farrier Room

In accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Open Meeting Act; this agenda was posted at the meeting site located at
1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008 on Tuesday, May 8, 2018. Items with an asterisk (*) in front of the number
are on the consent calendar and may be voted on in one motion at the beginning of the meeting. If you wish to
discuss any of these items, please request this item be removed from the consent calendar.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Deletions, deferrals or corrections to the agenda.

ORAL COMMUNICATION
The Joint Powers Authority Board Finance Committee may take other actions relating to the issues, as may be
determined following consideration of the matter and discussion of the recommended actions.

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Finance Committee on any matter not
on the agenda. Please limit your comments to three minutes. All statements that require a response will be
answered in writing or status of response will be reported on the agenda for the next regular meeting of the
Finance Committee. NOTE: If you wish to speak on an item of business listed on the agenda, please fill out a
speaker card and indicate the number of the agenda item you wish to address. The Chair will call upon you at the
time the Committee considers the item.

CONSENT CALENDAR ACTION
*1, Approve Minutes from April 11, 2018, Finance Committee meeting
*2 Recommend delegation of authority related to the public works contracts for

construction management, architectural services and general contractor services for the
1344 Dell Avenue project.
*3. Accept the following cash gifts:

a. Cash donation of $5.000 to the Santa Clara County Library District and augment
the budget for library furniture

b. Cash donation of $31,700 to the Santa Clara County Library District and augment
the budget for library materials.

C. Cash donation of $4,500 to the Santa Clara County Library District and augment
the budget for library programs and materials.

d. Cash donation of $850.18 to the Santa Clara County Library District and augment
the budget for library materials

e. Cash donation of $500 to the Santa Clara County Library District and augment

the budget for library programming

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the cities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 2 of 72

NEW BUSINESS
4, Approve and recommend adoption of the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Library Budget

5. Receive Independent Audit Report for the year ending June 30, 2017

6. Receive Annual Review of Capital Maintenance Plan

REPORTS/COMMENTS INFORMATION
7. County Librarian

8. Financial and Administrative Services Manager

9. Finance Committee Members

ADJOURN

To the next Finance Committee meeting on Wednesday, October 10, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. at the
Library Services and Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell CA 95008.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for this meeting should
notify the County Librarian’s Office 24 hours prior to the meeting at (408) 293-2326 x3090, TDD (408) 364-1528.




Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 3 of 72
I santa cla ra
Ilbra rydlstrlct
Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326
FC—*1 JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY BOARD
05/15/18 FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Wednesday, April 11, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

Committee members present: Mike Wasserman, BOS District 1, Courtenay C. Corrigan, Los
Altos Hills, Carl Cahill, Los Altos Hills City Manager, Burton Craig, Monte Sereno, and Steve Tate,
(2:04 p.m.) Morgan Hill.

Staff in attendance: Nancy Howe, County Librarian, Chris Brown, Deputy County Librarian,
Chuck Griffen, Financial and Administrative Services Manager, Diane Roche, Director of
Communications and Marketing and Tracy Ellenberger, Secretary.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Chair Wasserman called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. There were no deletions, deferrals
or corrections to the agenda.

ORAL COMMUNICATION

None.
CONSENT CALENDAR ACTION
*1. Approve Minutes from January 10, 2018, Finance Committee meeting.
*2. Recommend to the JPA to accept the Santa Clara County Library semi-annual gift report:
July 1, 2017-December 31, 2017.
*3, Consider date change for the May JPA Finance Committee meeting.
*4, Recommend to the JPA to accept the following cash gifts:
a. Cash donation of $2,000 to the Santa Clara County Library District and augment
the budget for library programs and materials.
b. Cash donation of $500 to the Santa Clara County lerary District and augment
the budget for a display unit.
C. Cash donation of $279.68 to the Santa Clara County Library District and augment
the budget for a Demco cart.
d. Cash donation of $1,750 to the Santa Clara County Library District and augment
the budget for the Reading Program.
e. Cash donation of $8,533.84 to the Santa Clara County Library District and
augment the budget for lobby furniture.
f. Cash donation of $5,674.13 to the Santa Clara County Library District and

augment the budget for library materials.

MOTION was moved by Cahill and seconded by Craig to approve the Consent Calendar items #1
through #4. The motion passed unanimously by the following vote:

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the cities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 4 of 72

Ayes: Cahill, Craig, Corrigan and Wasserman Noes: None
Mayor Tate arrived at 2:04 p.m.

NEW BUSINESS '

5s Consider the FY2018-2019 Preliminary Budget for the Santa Clara County Library District
Staff report. Chuck Griffen, Financial and Administrative Services Manager. The Committee
reviewed and discussed the Library District’s preliminary budget for FY 2018-2019. In addition
to the current revenue of $49 million, $3.28 million will be rolled over from uncompleted
projects from this year, and $890,000 will be transferred from the Capital Maintenance Plan
and Technology Plan reserves. 82% of the current revenue comes from property tax with an
additional 12% in special tax, which combined constitutes 94% of the library’s budget. The
revenue projection includes $1.7 in excess ERAF for this year and next. A summary of the
proposed personnel requests were reviewed. Staff gave an overview of the formula share and
the formula funding parameter adjustments.

The Board requested that staff revise the library fines and fees section of the estimated
revenue due to the Food for Fines program, to break out fines and fees for future reporting,
and to add $2 million to the Technology Plan reserve.

The Board agreed to change the date and time of the next JPA Finance Committee meeting to
Tuesday, May 15, 2018 at 2:30 p.m.

REPORTS/COMMENTS INFORMATION
6. County Librarian
No report
Zs Financial and Administrative Services Manager
No report
8. Finance Committee Members
No reports.
ADJOURN

Chair Wasserman adjourned the meeting at 2:43 p.m., to the next Finance Committee meeting
on Tuesday, May 15, 2018 at 2:30 p.m. at the Santa Clara County Library District Services and
Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell CA 95008.

Resrp\ectfully submitted,

A (= 9 \ -
—Hnoo TN —
Tracy Ellenberger, Secretary

Library District Joint Powers Authority Board



Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 5 of 72
' santa clara
.q county
libraryaistic
Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326
FC2
05/15/18
DATE: May 15, 2018
TO: Joint Powers Authority Board - Finance Committee
FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian &/
SUBJECT: DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY RELATED TO THE
PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTS FOR CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT, ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES AND
GENERAL CONTRACTOR FOR 1344 DELL AVENUE
PROJECT
RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that the Finance Committee recommend to the Board to delegate
authority to the County Librarian or designee, to negotiate, execute, amend and take any
and all necessary or advisable actions on the Public Works contracts for construction
management, architectural services and general contractor services for the 1344 Dell
Avenue project.

BACKGROUND/REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

At its January 25, 2018 meeting, the Board authorized a project budget for the
construction of the 1344 Dell Avenue property, and authorized staff to proceed with a
formal bidding process in accordance with the Library District’s Procurement Policy.
Due to the immediate space needs at the existing Services and Support Center, Library
Administration wishes to proceed with all haste to complete its competitive processes and
awarding of contracts related to construction management and architectural services; and
if the competitive bidding process for general contractor services is complete before the
next regularly scheduled JPA meeting in October, this delegation of authority would
allow the Library to award the contract and begin construction ahead of the rainy season.
In the event bids exceed the authorized budget, the project will come back to the Board
for further discussion before awarding bids.

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the ities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 6 of 72
' santa clara
.y COunty
libraryadvic

Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326

FC—*3a
05/15/18
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
BOARD TRANSMITTAL
DATE: May 15, 2018
TO: Joint Powers Authority Board-Finance Committee
FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian ,@/

SUBIJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF CASH GIFT

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended the Committee approve and recommend the Board accept a cash donation
in the amount of $5,000 made to the Los Altos Library from an anonymous donor to support
the library.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no fiscal implications to the approved Library Budget. The budget for purchases will
increase commensurately with the amount of the cash donation.

BACKGROUND/REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

An anonymous donor has presented the Library with a cash donation which is to be
appropriated for library furniture.

STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL

The Library budget will be augmented to reflect this donation. The County Librarian will
acknowledge this gift.

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the cities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 7 of 72
I santa clara
.y county
libraryaistic

Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326

FC—*3b
05/15/18
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
BOARD TRANSMITTAL
DATE: May 15, 2018
TO: Joint Powers Authority Board-Finance Committee
FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian ﬁ/

SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF CASH GIFT

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended the Committee approve and recommend the Board accept a cash donation
in the amount of $31,700 made to the Los Altos Library from the Friends of the Los Altos
Library for library materials.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no fiscal implications to the approved Library Budget. The budget for purchases will
increase commensurately with the amount of the cash donation.

BACKGROUND/REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Friends of the Los Altos Library has presented the Library with a cash donation which is to
be appropriated for library materials.

STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL

The Library budget will be augmented to reflect this donation. The County Librarian will
acknowledge this gift.

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the cities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 8 of 72

' santa clara
.y county
libraryaistic

Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326

FC—*3c
05/15/18
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
BOARD TRANSMITTAL
DATE: May 15, 2018
TO: Joint Powers Authority Board-Finance Committee
FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian \\9/

SUBIJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF CASH GIFT

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended the Joint Powers Authority Board accept a cash donation in the amount of
$4,500 made to the Santa Clara County Library District from the Santa Clara County Library
District Foundation for programming and incentives for Bookmobile, Lunch in the Library, and
Summer Reading.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no fiscal implications to the approved Library Budget. The budget for purchases will
increase commensurately with the amount of the cash donation.

BACKGROUND/REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Santa Clara County Library District Foundation has presented the Library with a cash
donation which is to be appropriated for programming and incentives for Bookmobile, Lunch in
the Library, and Summer Reading.

STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL

The Library budget will be augmented to reflect this donation. The County Librarian will
acknowledge this gift.

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the cities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 9 of 72

' santa clara
.y county
libraryadistic

Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326

FC—*3d

05/15/18 JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
BOARD TRANSMITTAL

DATE: May 15, 2018

TO: Joint Powers Authority Board-Finance Committee

FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian N

SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF CASH GIFT

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended the Committee approve and recommend the Board accept a cash donation
in the amount of $850.18 made to the Santa Clara County Library District from various donors
for library materials.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no fiscal implications to the approved Library Budget. The budget for purchases will
increase commensurately in the amount of $850.18 for FY2018

BACKGROUND/REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Santa Clara County Library has received cash donations from various donors which are to
be appropriated for the acquisition of Adult & Children’s library material.

STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL

The Library budget will be augmented to reflect this donation. The County Librarian will
acknowledge this gift.

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the cities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 10 of 72
I santa clara
., county
libraryaistic

Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326

FC—*3e
05/15/18
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
BOARD TRANSMITTAL
DATE: May 15, 2018
TO: Joint Powers Authority Board-Finance Committee
FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian &

SUBIJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF CASH GIFT

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended the Committee approve and recommend the Board accept a cash donation
in the amount of $500 made to the Los Altos Library from the Los Altos Library Endowment for
programming supplies.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no fiscal implications to the approved Library Budget. The budget for purchases will
increase commensurately with the amount of the cash donation.

BACKGROUND/REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Los Altos Library Endowment has presented the Library with a cash donation which is to be
appropriated for programming supplies.

STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL

The Library budget will be augmented to reflect this donation. The County Librarian will
acknowledge this gift.

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the cities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 11 of 72
l santa clara
.y county
' I|bra rYdistrict
Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326
FC-4
05/15/18 JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
BOARD TRANSMITTAL
DATE: May 15,2018
TO: Joint Powers Authority Board - Finance Committee
FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian Yl
SUBJECT: APPROVE AND RECOMMEND ADOPTION OF THE
FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 LIBRARY BUDGET
RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that the Committee approve and recommend that the Board adopt the
Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Final Budget

BACKGROUND/REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Library District’s revenues are expected to continue growing modestly. As a result,
the Library is able to develop a budget that maintains existing hours and services, while
adding staff to meet additional demand.

The approval of this budget is expected to be sustainable over the five-year forecast

period:
FISCAL Operating Designated Operating Surplus
YEAR Revenue Reserves Cost
2017-18 || $ 47,714,280 4,888,710 48,627,460 3,975,530
2018-19 || $ 49,403,868 4,170,000 53,573,868 -
2019-20 || $ 49,866,665 = 49,764,476 102,189
2020-21 || $ 52,070,237 = 51,571,724 498,513
2021-22 || $ 53,912,270 - 53,384,905 527,365

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the ities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



CONTENTS

Requested Budget Summary............c.coevvviiininnnnan
Expenditure and Revenue Comparison Charts............
Four-Year Recap of Revenue and Expenditure...........
Revenue Projection Fiscal Year 2018 —2019............
Fonr-Year Revenne Trend Chart. . oo s swesss s smss s
Personnel Request .........c.ccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn.n.

- Personnel Cost Allocation by Location .............

- Ten-Year Recap of Personnel FTE ..................

Services & Supplies, Facilities, and Books Request.....
- Book Allocation by Location .........................

Fixed Assel REQUEST: o onssmssnuss omisvoms smis sns s s sans
Budgeted Reserves.......oovvvevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiinnnne.
Rebudget of Unspent Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Funds...

Library Formula Fiscal Year 2018-2019...................

Funding Formula Parameter Adjustments.................

Finance Committee

11

12

13

14

15

May 15, 2018
Page 12 of 72



Santa Clara County Library District - Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Estimated Revenue:

Finance Committee

REQUESTED BUDGET SUMMARY

Requested Expenditures:

May 15, 2018
Page 13 of 72

Property Taxes 40,544,737 Personnel 32,280,568
State Sources 53,523 Books and Materials 7,144,043
Special Tax 5,888,732 Facilities 5,758,022
City/ County Contribution 1,752,271 Services and Supplies 7.396,236
Fines & Fees 387,000 TOTAL Operating Budget 52,578,868
Other 777,605
TOTAL Current Revenue 49,403,868
Transfer from Cap. & IT Res. 890,000
2017-18 Budget Rollover 3.280.,000 Fixed Assets & Vehicles 995,000
TOTAL $53,573,868 TOTAL  $53,573,868
Four-Year Expenditure Trend
60,000,000
BFixed Assets &
i Vehicles
50,000,000 {
BServices and Supplies
40,000,000 ¥ e RE BFacilities
30,000,000 @Books and Materials
BPersonnel
20,000,000
10,000,000
0 £ = 3
16 Act. 17 Act. 18 Est. 19 Budget
Santa Clara County Library District 1 Fiscal Year 2018-2019




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 14 of 72

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Library Revenue

City & County Fines & Fees,
Contribution, 387,200
1,752,271 <1%

4%

Special Tax,

5,888,732
12%

State Grants,
$53,523

<1%
Property Taxes,
40,544,737
82%

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Library Expenditures

Services & Supplies,
7,396,236
14%

Fixed Assets
995,000
2%

Facilities,
5,758,022
119

Books and
Materials, 7,144,043
13%
Personnel,
32,280,568
60%

Santa Clara County Library District 2

Fiscal Year 2018-2019




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 15 of 72

Santa Clara County Library Budget
Fiscal Year 2018 - 2019

Four-Year Recap of Revenue & Expenses

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 1718 FY 17-18 FY 18-19
Actual Actual Approved Estimated Budget

REVENUE
Property Taxes 35,904,614 37,401,559 37,276,988 38,713,020 40,544,737
State Grants 119,846 83,203 46,000 46,000 53,523
Special Tax 5,818,256] 5,857,783 5,824,984 5,873,258 5,888,732
City & County Contribution 1,121,826 1,723,189 1,621,482 1,654,482 1,752,271
Fines & Fees 555,736 548,507 542,000 482,000 387,000
Other 929,458 1,598,130 446,741 945,520 777,605

TOTAL| 44,449,736 47,212,371 45,758,195 47,714,280 49,403,868
Transfer from Cap. & IT Reserves 0 0 4,173,017 4,173,017 890,000
Transfer from Prior Year 0 0 715.693 715,693 3,280,000
TOTAL FINANCING AVAILABLE 44,449,736 47,212,371 50,646,905 52,602,990 53,573,868
EXPENSES
Personnel 25,947,476 27,697,581 30,238,846 30,175,154 32,280,568
Books and Materials 5,236,957 5,535,253 6,406,147 6,693,104 7,144,043
Facilities 2,998,610 2,943,795 5,097,470 3,562,987 5,758,022
Services and Supplies 4,840,640 6,364,897 7,134,425 7,391,198 7,396,236
Fixed Assets & Vehicles 235,723 2,626,774 1,770,017 805,017 995,000

TOTAL| 39,259,406 45,168,300 50,646,905 48,627,460 53,573,868

Santa Clara County Library District

Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Fiscal Year 2018-2019
REVENUE PROJECTION

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 16 of 72

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 Variance from
REVENUE SOURCE Actual Budget Projected Budget Approved
Supplemental Roll $ 1,031,860 |$ 979,941 |$ 928863 |$ 928863 |$ (51,078)
Property Tax - Current Secured 26,438,862 26,831,914 27,558,561 29,059,561 2,227,647
Property Tax - RDA Distribution 1,248,791 1,300,000 1,303,000 1,303,000 3,000
Property Tax - Current Unsecured 1,998,572 2,080,219 2,148,836 2,189,836 109,617
Excess ERAF 2,065,785 1,300,000 1,807,000 1,902,000 602,000
Property Tax - Unitary Roll 785,022 800,914 812,478 812,478 11,564
Property Tax- VLF in lieu 3,036,025 3,188,000 3,249,000 3,444,000 256,000
RDA- Property Tax Pass-thru 796,642 796,000 905,283 905,000 109,000
Subtotal All Property Tax| $37,401,559| $37,276,988| $38,713,020 $40,544,737 $3,267,749
Library Fees and Charges $ 235821|% 230,000$% 230,000]|% 232,000]% 2,000
Library Overdue Fines $ 312686|$% 312,000|$ 252,000|$ 155,000 $ (157,000)
Interest Earnings 320,163 250,000 250,000 250,000 0
Homeowner Prop. Tax Relief 146,139 142,741 141,520 140,105 (2,636)
State LSCA 83,188 46,000 46,000 53,5623 7,623
Other State Grants 15 0 0 0 0
Contributions from Cities 1,273,699 1,570,482 1,603,482 1,701,271 130,789
Special Tax - CFD 5,857,783 5,824,984 5,873,258 5,888,732 63,748
Other Library Services 20,807 14,000 14,000 21,250 7,250
Contributions & Donations 1,031,012 0 500,000 0 0
Passport Fees 326,250
Misc. Income 32,635 10,000 10,000 10,000 0
Transfer from County 449,490 51,000 51,000 51,000 0
Federal Medicare Credit 47,374 30,000 30,000 30,000 0
Subtotal All Other Sources| $9,810,812| $8,481,207| $9,001,259| $8,859,131 $377,924
TOTAL| 47,212,371| $45,758,195| $47,714,280| $49,403,868 $3,645,673
Budget Rollover from Prior Year $0 $715,693 $715,693 $3,280,000 2,564,307
Transfer from Cap. & IT Reserves $0| $4,173,017| $4,173,017 $890,000| ($3,283,017)
GRAND TOTAL| $47,212,371| $50,646,905| $52,602,990| $53,573,868 $2,926,963

Secured property taxes in FY 2018-2019 are forecasted to increase 5.45% over the projected FY 2017-
2018 amounts based on estimates from the County Controller's Office, while overall property taxes are
forecast to increase 4.49%. "Excess ERAF" is expected to continue through 2018-19 and beyond. All
other revenue sources remain relatively flat, with the exception of "Contribution of Cities," due to the
financial support from the North County Library Authority for additional hours of service at the Woodland
Branch Library in Los Altos. The "Budget Rollover from Prior Year" represents projects budgeted in 2017-
18 that will not be accomplished until 2018-19. The "Transfer from Reserves" represents FY 2018-2019
projects for which funding was set aside by the JPA Board in its approval of the Technology and Capital

Maintenance Plans.

Santa Clara County Library District

Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 17 of 72

Four-Year Revenue Trend
50,000,000 ]
45,000,000 ‘ : BO0ther
40,000,000 l BFines & Fees
a500¢:000 l BCity & County Contribution
30,000,000 ¥ ||
] BOSpecial Tax
25,000,000 ¥ ||
1 A @ State Grants
20,000,000 ¥ ||
‘ 7 BProperty Taxes
15,000,000 I
10,000,000 r
5,000,000 i
ol
15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19
Actual Actual Estimated Budget
Santa Clara County Library District 5 Fiscal Year 2018-2019




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 18 of 72

FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 PERSONNEL REQUEST

The proposed personnel budget of $32,280,568 reflects a $2,041,722 increase from the original
JPA-approved Fiscal Year 2017-18 personnel budget and associated with the following proposed
personnel actions:

e The addition of one full-time Public Communication Specialist, one part-time Media
Specialist/Coordinator, one full-time Electronic Resources Librarian, and one full-time
Warehouse Materials Handler, offset by the deletion of one vacant part-time Public
Communication Specialist and one vacant full-time Senior Library Clerk;

e The addition of 1,040 extra Library Clerk hours for the Bookmobile;

e The addition of 780 extra help Library Clerk hours and 34 extra Library Clerk hours at
Cupertino Community Library;

e The addition of one part-time Library Assistant at Los Altos Community Library;

e The addition of one part-time Library Page and 132 extra Librarian hours at Saratoga
Community Library;

e The addition of one full-time Librarian, one part-time Library Clerk, and one part-time
Library Page at Milpitas Community Library;

e The addition of one part-time Library Clerk and 104 extra Janitor hours at Morgan Hill
Community Library, offset by the reduction of 350 extra Library Clerk hours;

e The addition of 728 extra Janitor hours at Gilroy Community Library

Santa Clara County Library District 6 Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Personnel Budget

FY 2018-2019

Expenditure & Revenue Recap

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 19 of 72

201819 | Traditional | CFD  [LocallGifts[ Passport | Transfer | TOTAL |
REVENUES .
| $41,573,625 | $5888,732 | $1,701,271 |  $240,240 | $4,170,000 | $53,573,868 |
EXPENDITURES
Operating $9,014,258 $4,140,000 | $13,154,258
Capital $965,000 $30,000 $995,000
Books, Etc. $5,966,296 | $1,177,746 $0 $7,144,043
Personnel $25,628,071 | $4,710,986 [ $1,701,271 $240,240 $32,280,568
TOTAL $41,573,625 | $5,888,732 | $1,701,271 $240,240 | $4,170,000 | $53,573,868
Community Facilities District Recap
CFD REVENUES Personnel Books
Campbell 573,971 $459,177 $114,794
Cupertino 754,713 $603,770 $150,943
Gilroy 713,783 $571,027 $142,757
Los Altos/Wo 504,531 $403,625 $100,906
Milpitas 1,051,957 $841,566 $210,391
Morgan Hill 605,453 $484,362 $121,091
Saratoga/MS 435,952 $348,761 $87,190
Subtotal 4,640,360 $3,712,288 $928,072
Bookmobile* $495,182 $70,000
Unincorporated* 1,248,373 $503,516 $179,675
Total $5,888,732 $4,710,986 $1,177,746
Salary and Benefit Recap
Traditional | Remainder 100% Unincorp Specific
Formula by by CFD CFD Passport Place $ FY19 FY18
PERSONNEL Share Platform Formula Return | by formula Fees (City/NCLA) TOTAL Budgeted
Campbell 10.79% $1,343,145 $584,662 $459,177 $54,330 $2,441,314 |  $2,327,068
Cupertino 21.98% $2,154,494 |  $1,190,945 $603,770 $110,669 $120,120 $468,023 [ $4,648,021 $4,304,785
Gilroy 10.47% $1,138,391 $567,481 $571,027 $52,734 $2,329,632 $2,220,917
Los Altos/Woodland 16.14% $1,842,389 $874,781 $403,625 $81,289 $723,670 | $3,925,755 $3,664,929
Milpitas 18.23% $1,766,643 $987,642 $841,566 $91,777 $120,120 $509,578 | $4,317,326 |  $3,978,729
Morgan Hill 9.80% $1,189,661 $531,117 $484,362 $49,354 $2,254,494 | $2,152,949
Saratoga 12.58% $1,501,250 $681,864 $348,761 $63,363 $2,595,238 |  $2,470,148
Sub-Total Libraries 100% $10,935,974 | $5,418,491 | $3,712,288 $503,516 $240,240 |  $1,701,271 | $22,511,780 | $21,119,525
Headquarters $8,862,706 $8,862,706 |  $7,724,107
The Reading Program $410,897 $410,897 $343,669
Bookmobile $495,182 $495,182 $395,409
GRAND TOTAL $20,209,578 | $5,418,491 | $3,712,288 $998,698 $240,240 |  $1,701,271 | $32,280,566 | $29,582,710

*Bookmobile expenses are deducted from the Unincorporated Revenues before applying formula to Unincorporated CFD

Santa Clara County Library District

Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 20 of 72

Santa Clara County Library District
FTE from FY 2008-2009 to FY 2018-2019

The following totals included benefited positions, extra help positions and allocations of extra hours for part-time employees:

Headquarters 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Administration 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 8.5 9.5
Business Office 1450 14.80 14.8 13.9 14.0 13.5 13.6 14.2 14.6 15.1 16.1
Public Services 5.2 5.2 5.3 5.6 6.2 6.2 6.2 7.4 7.4 7.4 6.5
Computer Support 6.3 6.3 6.9 7.3 7.1 7.1 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Tech & Digital Svcs 17.8 18.3 18.4 16.8 16.7 16.7 16.7 16.7 17.7 18.7 19.7
Subtotal 49.70 50.60 51.3 49.5 50.0 50.0 50.0 51.8 53.2 56.8 58.8

Percent of total 19.3% 18.6% 19.2% 19.5% 19.6% 20.0% 19.9% 20.0% 19.9% 19.8% 19.9%

Direct Service  2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Centr. Pub. Svc. 5.0 5.8 5.5 5.5 5.5 6.9 6.9 6.9 9.4 9.0 9.0
Bookmobile 3.5 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.7 4.5 5.0
Campbell 22.2 23.3 22.3 20.6 21.3 20.7 21.0 213 22.2 23.2 23.2
Cupertino 38.1 39.2 39.3 37.8 40.8 38.8 394 39.8 40.4 41.9 43.8
Gilroy 19.5 22.2 20.9 20.4 21.1 20.5 20.6 20.9 21.0 22.0 22.4
Literacy 1.0 1.0 2.5 2.5 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.0 3.5
Los Altos 32.0 32.7 31.7 30.0 29.7 28.8 28.8 30.1 30.6 32.3 32.3
Woodland 4.1 4.6 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 4.8 4.8 5.0 5.9
Milpitas 37.8 39.3 40.0 37.7 32.6 30.9 311 33.1 33.7 41.4 43.3
Morgan Hill 20.0 21.9 20.8 19.5 20.3 20.0 20.0 20.8 214 21.9 22,5
Saratoga 24.9 27.3 25.2 22.9 23.9 23.4 23.6 23.9 24.4 25.2 25.7
Subtotal 208.1 220.8 2154 204.1 2053 200.1 2015 207.6 214.7 229.3  236.5

Percent of total 80.7% 81.4% 80.8% 80.5% 80.4% 80.0% 80.1% 80.0% 80.1% 80.2% 80.1%

Total FTE 257.8 2714 266.8 253.6 255.2 250.1 2515 259.5 268.0 286.0 2953

| 2017118 [2018/19]

Benefited FTE: 233.8 2425
Extra Help FTE: 33.4 33.4
Extra Hours FTE: 18.9 19.5
TOTAL.: 286.0 295.3

Santa Clara County Library District 8 Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Facilities, Services and Supplies Request

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 21 of 72

FY 18-19
FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 17-18 Proposed
EXPENDITURE CATEGORY ACTUAL Budget (Adj) | Projected Budget Change

Safety Shoes 1,555 3,559 2,606 3,000 (559)
Communications & Phone 312,746 201,690 53,810 333,020 131,330
Communications & Phone- Co. 30,955 34,521 33,345 28,034 (6,487)
Insurance Premiums 119,593 121,499 121,331 126,910 5,411
Insurance- Internal 67,956 96,259 96,259 97,354 1,095
Maintenance- Equipment 191,635 684,807 808,058 750,157 65,349
Maintenance- Structures 765,964 3,202,510 1,037,510 3,280,000 77,490
Membership Dues & Fees 50,472 55,500 48,938 55,000 (500)
Office Expense 600,693 629,532 733,602 458,400 (171,132)
Postage Expense-External 10,336 200,000 136,704 200,000 0
Postage Expense- Internal 10,590 9,210 9,210 10,456 1,246
Printing- External 86,640 210,858 121,779 200,000 (10,858)
PC Software 655,709 1,135,489 911,082 976,529 (158,960)
Education Exp.- Other 3,179 22,000 8,620 22,000 0
Workshops, Conf. & Seminars 24,356 30,000 32,371 30,000 0
Professional Services 873,501 1,581,399 1,103,911 1,438,470 (142,929)
SCC Library Foundation 0 10,000 10,000 10,000 0
Silicon Valley Reads 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0
Data Proc. Servc.- External 54,048 65,000 54,314 70,200 5,200
IT Services.- Internal 306,978 361,354 361,354 330,198 (31,156)
Legal Services 31,267 35,590 20,000 30,375 (5,215)
Property Tax Admin Fee 16,453 27,000 27,000 27,000 0
Lease- Equipment- Other 167,949 187,634 206,116 206,000 18,366
Rent & Lease Building & Improve. 427,782 442,253 442,253 365,704 (76,549)
Small Tools & Instru. 78,526 118,838 103,094 120,800 1,962
Furniture 77,575 244,086 471,852 196,000 (48,086)
PC Hardware 1,957,768 1,846,400 1,696,400 1,160,222 (686,178)
Service Staff Meetings 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0
Incentives and Promotions 30,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
Summer Reading Marketing 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 0
ESL Programming 0 150,000 0 0 (150,000)
Library Materials 5,535,253 6,693,104 6,693,104 7,144,043 450,938
County Overhead 548,003 757,476 757,476 1,036,111 278,635
Fuel 1,878 5,637 5,637 2,487 (3,150)
Garage Fleet Services 24,350 27,439 33,549 23,631 (3,808)
Mileage 15,106 22,500 18,465 24,000 1,500
Automobile Services 32,232 26,000 36,678 37,000 11,000
Local Meals and Meetings 4,484 3,000 6,786 5,000 2,000
Business Travel 41,522 65,000 41,293 72,200 7,200
Utilities 1,141,224 1,211,000 1,306,626| 1,331,000 120,000
Misc. Expenses -- Other 510,668 10,000 11,157 12,000 2,000

TOTAL| $14,843,945| $20,613,144| $17,647,289| $20,298,300 (314,843)

Facilities, Services and Supplies Summary:
Although there are a number of fluctuations identified above, many of these are related to the expenditure of one-
time funds in a given fiscal year that do not repeat in another. For example, the $686,178 decrease in "PC
Hardware" expenditures relates to the 2017-18 funding for network enhancements and replacement of all staff
phones. The most dramatic increases include $450,938 in "Library Materials" for additional e-books and e-
resources. The drop in "ESL Programming" refers to the $150,000 transfer from the County to continue formerly
federal grant-funded ESL programming in the Libraries for three years; this funding will be used to fund a part-time
Literacy Program Coordinator rather than an outside contractor.

Santa Clara County Library District

Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Books and Materials Budget
FY 2018-2019

Expenditure & Revenue Recap

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 22 of 72

201819 [ Traditional | CFD [ LocallGifts Passports | Transfer | TOTAL |
REVENUES
| 41,573,625 | $5,888,732 | $1,701,271 | $240,240 | $4,170,000 | $53,573,868 |
EXPENDITURES
Operating $9,014,258 $0 $0 $0 | $4,140,000 | $13,154,258
Capital $965,000 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $995,000
Books, Etc. $5,966,296 $1,177,746 $0 $0 $0 [ $7,144,043
Personnel $25,628,071 $4,710,986 $1,701,271 $240,240 $0 | $32,280,568
TOTAL $41,573,625 $5,888,732 $1,701,271 $240,240 | $4,170,000 | $53,573,868
Community Facilities District Recap
CFD REVENUES Personnel Books
Campbell $573,971 $459,177 $114,794
Cupertino $754,713 $603,770 $150,943
Gilroy $713,783 $571,027 $142,757
Los Altos/Wo $504,531 $403,625 $100,906
Milpitas $1,051,957 $841,566 $210,391
Morgan Hill $605,453 $484,362 $121,001
Saratoga/MS $435,952 $348,761 $87,190
Subtotal $4,640,360 $3,712,288 $928,072
Bookmobile $0 $495,182 $70,000
Unincorporated* $1,248,373 $503,516 $179,675
Total $5,888,732 $4,710,986 $1,177,746
Books and Materials Recap
Traditional Unincorp Specific
Formula by CFD CFD Place $ FY19 FY18 Change
MATERIALS** Share Formula Return by formula (City/NCLA) TOTAL Budgeted | from FY18
Campbell 10.79% $626,722 $114,794 $19,387 $760,904 $638,839 $122,065
Cupertino 21.98% $1,276,621 $150,943 $39,491 $1,467,054 $1,225,558 $241,496
Gilroy 10.47% $608,305 $142,757 $18,817 $769,880 $654,668 $115,212
Los Altos/Woodland 16.14% $937,712 $100,906 $29,007 $1,067,626 $877,255 $190,371
Milpitas 18.23%(  $1,058,693 $210,391 $32,750 $1,301,834 $1,077,546 $224,288
Morgan Hill 9.80% $569,325 $121,091 $17,612 $708,027 $602,277 $105,750
Saratoga 12.58% $730,917 $87,190 $22,610 $840,718 $702,005 $138,713
Sub-Total Libraries 100% $5,808,294 $928,072 $179,674 $0 | $6,916,042 $5,778,148 $1,137,894
Bookmobile $70,000 $70,000
Headquarters $158,000 $158,000
GRAND TOTAL $5,966,294 $928,072 $249,674 $0 | $7,144,042

*Bookmobile expenses are deducted from the Unincorporated Revenues before applying formula to Unincorporated CFD

Santa Clara County Library

10

Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 23 of 72

FIXED ASSET and VEHICLE REQUEST

Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Fixed Assets

The following fixed asset requests will be funded with unspent funding from FY 2017-18
($965,000) and a transfer from the Technology Reserve ($30,000):

Self-Check Machine Replacements $790,000

Originally scheduled in the Technology Plan for fiscal year 2018-19, this project will be
moved to fiscal year 2017-18 to coincide with the replacement of security gates.

Security Gate Replacement $175,000
This funding will be used to replace security gates at each library location.
Smart Devices for Patron Use $30,000

This funding supports the loaning of “smart” devices to respond to patron needs.

Total Fixed Asset Request: $995,000

Santa Clara County Library District 11 Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 24 of 72

BUDGETED RESERVES
Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Capital Maintenance (Building) Reserve

The designated Building Reserve serves to identify funding for future significant building
repair and maintenance obligations. The amount requested to be transferred from this
reserve in Fiscal Year 2018-19 is $490,000 for the following projects:

Saratoga Roof Restoration: $205,000
Milpitas Library Interior Space: $200,000
Milpitas Interior Painting: $45,000
Milpitas Exterior Auto Doors: $40,000

The current balance in this reserve: $5,904,000

Reserve for Future Operation (Technology)

The Board established this designated reserve to accrue financing for large, costly
computer system upgrades and equipment replacement. In January 2016, the JPA Board
considered the three-year comprehensive plan for technology replacement and upgrade
and designated funds for technology improvements through 2019. The amount requested
to be transferred from this reserve in Fiscal Year 2018-19 is $400,000. It is needed to
pay for the items detailed in the Fixed Asset request and certain Services and Supplies
items.

The current balance in this reserve: $400,000

As the above action will spend the entire balance in this reserve, it is recommended that a
new three-year reserve be established in the estimated amount of $2,000,000. A detailed
Technology Plan outlining the use of this money will be presented to the JPA Board in
June 2018.

Reserves Recap: The estimated status of reserves/fund balance, following adoption of
the FY 2018-19 Budget, is as follows.

FUND 0025
$ 5,414,000  Capital Maintenance Reserve
2,000,000  Estimated Technology Reserve
13,000,000  Fund Balance- Economic Uncertainty Designation
7,800,000 1344 Dell Avenue Capital Program

$ 3,015,078  Undesignated Fund Balance

Santa Clara County Library District 12 Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 25 of 72

REBUDGET OF UNSPENT FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 FUNDS
Fiscal Year 2018-2019

The following projects and purchases, budgeted in Fiscal Year 2017-2018, will not be
completed before June 30, 2018 and need to be rebudgeted to Fiscal Year 2018-2019:

e $790,000 for Replacement of Self-Check Machines;

e $750,000 for 1344 Dell Architectural and Construction Management;
e  $460,000 for Los Altos Roof

e $245,000 for Campbell Roof

e $200,000 for Gilroy Community Library Interior Space

e $200,000 for Morgan Hill Community Library Interior Space

e $200,000 for Cupertino Community Library Interior Space

e $175,000 for Replacement of Security Gates;

e $150,000 for WiFi Network Upgrade

e $75,000 for Gilroy & Milpitas Community Library HVAC Units

e $35,000 for Morgan Hill Community Library Interior Painting;

Total amount rebudgeted from Fiscal Year 2017-2018: $3,280,000.

Santa Clara County Library District 13 Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Santa Clara County Library Formula 2018-2019

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 26 of 72

Population Assessed Formula | Fy 17-
Library 1-1-17 | Percent Valuation Percent Circulation | Percent| Share 18

Campbell 42,726 9,479,316,208
Unincorporated 8,474 2,076,785,359
Redevelopment -980,471,857
RDA Pass-thru 962,774,627
RDA Dissolution 0

51,200| 13.291% 11,538,404,336| 10.607% 734,862| 8.473%| 10.79%| 10.79%
Cupertino 58,917 23,139,029,846
Unincorporated 4,011 611,070,589

62,928/ 16.335% 23,750,100,435| 21.833% 2,408,540| 27.770%| 21.98%| 22.15%
Gilroy 55,936 8,175,945,948
Unincorporated 7,672 1,443,494,021

63,608| 16.512% 9,619,439,969| 8.843% 526,005| 6.065%| 10.47%)| 10.60%
Los Altos 31,402 14,654,150,002
Los Altos Hills 8,634 7,546,831,485
Unincorporated 4,293 1,314,442,750

44,329 11.507% 23,515,424,237| 21.617% 1,327,779/ 15.309%| 16.14%| 15.98%
Milpitas 75,410 17,465,358,074
Unincorporated 312 85,464,418
Redevelopment -6,904,688,474
RDA Pass-thru 823,056,400
RDA Dissolution 2,225 /495,045

75,722| 19.656% 13,694,685,464| 12.589% 1,945,939| 22.436%| 18.23%| 17.88%
Morgan Hill 44,145 8,843,643,065
Unincorporated 7,641 2,269,080,299
Redevelopment -2,949,128,085
RDA Pass-thru 386,456,180
RDA Dissolution 859,415,456

51,786| 13.443% 9,409,466,916| 8.650% 634,277 7.313%| 9.80%| 9.95%
Saratoga 30,569 14,451,616,526
Monte Sereno 3,501 2,057,751,561
Unincorporated 1,587 746,104,370

35,657| 9.256% 17,255,472,457| 15.862% 1,095,734 12.634%| 12.58%| 12.65%
Percentages are based on assigned

Population Assessed Valuation Circulation

Total 439,004 122,754,062,547 9,033,100
Assigned 385,231 108,782,993,813 8,673,136
Cities 351,240 105,813,642,715
Unincorporated 33,991 8,546,441,805
Unassigned 53,773 8,393,978,027 359,964 |(Bookmobile, HQ)
Redevelopment -5,577,090,707
Total Unincorp 87,764 16,940,419,832
Santa Clara County Library District 14

Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 27 of 72

FUNDING FORMULA PARAMETER ADJUSTMENTS
Fiscal Year 2018-2019

At the October 27, 2016 JPA Board meeting, the Board adopted the following funding
formula parameters to the existing funding formula, beginning in Fiscal Year 2017-18:

When a community’s relative percentage of assessed valuation and/or “public service
transactions”! exceeds their Community Library’s funding formula share by more than
5%, increase these Community Libraries’ staffing and library materials budgets to an
amount that would be realized if these differences were limited to 5%, subject to
available annual funding from excess fund balance.

Public Service Transactions” include circulation of library materials, program attendance, reference
questions, and computer sessions.

Test 1: Assessed Valuation Test 2: Public Service Transactions

Assessed Public Service

Valuation Formula Transactions  Formula

Percentage Percentage Difference Percentage Percentage Difference
Campbell 10.607% 10.79% -0.183% 8.754% 10.79% -2.036%
Cupertino 21.833% 21.98% -0.147% 27.006% 21.98% 5.026%
Gilroy 8.843% 10.47% -1.630% 6.816% 10.47% -3.657%
Los Altos 21.617% 16.14% 5.472% 15.221% 16.14% -0.923%
Milpitas 12.589% 18.23% -5.638% 22.209% 18.23% 3.982%
Morgan Hill 8.650% 9.80% -1.152% 7.551% 9.80% -2.251%
Saratoga 15.862% 12.58% 3.278% 12.442% 12.58% -0.142%

In the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Funding Formula, there are two instances in which one-time
adjustments could be made.

1) Los Altos’ relative share of assessed valuation is 21.617%, while the formula
share is 16.14% -- a difference of 5.472%. If this difference were limited to 5%,
Los Altos libraries would receive an additional $27,980 for staffing
(recommended for 884 extra help Page hours and 364 extra Janitor hours) and
$28,291 for materials.

2) Cupertino’s relative share of public service transactions is 27.006%, while the
formula share is 22.98% -- a difference of 5.026%. If this difference were limited
to 5%, Cupertino Community Library would receive an additional $1,566 for
staffing (recommended for the addition of 74 extra help Library Clerk hours) and
$133 for materials.

As sufficient unrestricted fund balance is available to fund these increased budgets, the
2018-19 Personnel Budget and Books & Materials Budget will be adjusted accordingly.

Santa Clara County Library District 15 Fiscal Year 2018-2019



Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 28 of 72
I santa clara
.y County
libraryaistic

Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326

FC-5
05/15/18
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
BOARD TRANSMITTAL
DATE: May 15,2018
TO: Joint Powers Authority Board — Finance Committee

FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian

SUBJECT: INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT FOR YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that the Finance Committee receive the independent Audit report for Fiscal
Year 2016-2017 prepared by Macias, Gini & O’Connell, LLP, and recommend acceptance by the
JPA Board.

BACKGROUND

A representative of the Audit firm will be in attendance to present the report and answer
questions

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the cities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 29 of 72

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF
SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of
Santa Clara, California)

Report to the Governing Board of
the Library Joint Powers Authority of
Santa Clara County

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Certified
Public
Accountants




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

Certified Page 30 of 72
Public
Accountants

Governing Board of the
Library Joint Powers Authority of Santa Clara County
Campbell, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activity and major fund of the Library Joint
Powers Authority of Santa Clara County (Authority), a component unit of the County of Santa Clara
(County), California, for the year ended June 30, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you
with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.
We have communicated such information in our audit service plan dated May 30, 2017. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Authority are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year
ended June 30, 2017. We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the year for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in
the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected.

The most sensitive estimates affecting the Authority’s financial statements were:

e Depreciation estimates for capital assets, including depreciation methods and useful lives
assigned to depreciable properties;

e Accrual and disclosures of compensated absences;

e Pension plan’s net pension liability, pension expense, pension related deferred outflows and
inflows of resources, and the employer contribution requirements; and

e Other postemployment benefit plan’s contribution requirements.
Management’s judgments and estimates were based on the following:

e Depreciation methods and useful lives for depreciable property were determined by management
based on the nature of the capital asset;

e Accrual and disclosures of compensated absences were based on accrued eligible hours of
vacation at current pay rates for eligible employees;

e Pension plan’s net pension liability, pension expense, pension related deferred outflows and
inflows of resources, and the employer contribution requirements were based on actuarial
valuations performed by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System and allocated by
the County; and

e Other postemployment benefit plan’s contribution requirements were based on actuarial
valuations performed by the County’s independent actuaries and allocated by the County.

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP

2121 N. California Boulevard, Suite 750
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 www.mgocpa.com



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 31 of 72

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these accounting estimates in determining
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were the disclosures of
pension plan and other postemployment healthcare plan in Notes 4 and 5, respectively, to the financial
statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or
in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April 17, 2018.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 32 of 72

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary
comparison schedule — General Fund, the schedule of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability, and the schedule of Authority contributions, which are required supplementary
information (RSI) that supplement the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSIL.

Restriction on Use

This communication is intended solely for the use of the Members of Governing Board and management
of the Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Macfats G é’/ OCamel [P

Walnut Creek, California
April 17,2018



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 33 of 72

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF
SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of
Santa Clara, California)

Independent Auditor’s Report,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
Basic Financial Statements, and
Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Certified
Public
Accountants




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 34 of 72

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF
SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Table of Contents
Page
Independent Auditor’s REPOIt..... ..o 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information - Unaudited).......... 3
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position — Governmental ACtIVILY........cocevuiiiiniiiiiiiiiniiniene e 7
Statement of Activities — Governmental ACHVILY .....c.cceveerierriieiiiiiiiniii e 8
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — General FUNA ......c.coiiiiiiiiiiieeierceercen i s 9
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — General Fund ................. 10
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — General Fund to the
Government-Wide Statement of Activities - Governmental ACtiVity.........ccoceviieiiiiininiinnincens 11
Notes to Basic Financial Statements...........cccccooceriieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 13
Other Required Supplementary Information - Unaudited:
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund..........c.coooiiiii 25
Notes to the Budgetary Comparison SChedule .........cocoiiiiimimiinninininsiensn. 26
Schedule of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability .........cccooviniicniininn. 27
Schedule of Authority COntribDULIONS..........coviiiiiiciisiimimenmsmmmmiissssssssssensssstssesisssesss 28
Notes to the Schedule of Authority Contributions..........cccecverimninrninisieninesessnesesssssisiee. 29

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.......................cccoooviiiiiiininiinnn. 31



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

Certified ) Page 35 of 72
Public
Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Governing Board of the
Library Joint Powers Authority of Santa Clara County
Campbell, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activity and major fund of
the Library Joint Powers Authority of Santa Clara County (Authority), a component unit of the County of
Santa Clara (County), California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activity and major fund of the Authority as of
June 30,2017, and the respective changes in its financial position thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP
2121 N. California Boulevard, Suite 750

Walnut Creek, CA 94596 www.mgocpa.com



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 36 of 72

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedule — General Fund, the schedule of the
Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the schedule of Authority contributions,
as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 17, 2018,
on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that repott is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mw‘as Gini J O Cmel (5P

Walnut Creek, California
April 17,2018



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 37 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the Library Joint Powers Authority of
Santa Clara County (Authority) financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2017. Please read it in
conjunction with the Authority’s basic financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

o At June 30, 2017, the assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $27,326,883 (net position), an increase of $2,182,718
when compared to the prior year.

o At June 30, 2017, the Authority’s governmental fund reported an ending fund balance of $38,459,709
an increase of $548,535 when compared to the prior year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial
statements. The annual financial report for the Authority includes this management’s discussion and
analysis (MD&A), the basic financial statements, notes to basic financial statements and other required
supplementary information.

The basic financial statements of the Authority are presented showing two different views of the
Authority. The government-wide financial statements focus shows both long-term and short-term
information on the Authority’s overall financial status. The fund financial statements view focuses on the
Authority’s operations with a short-term focus.

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of
activities, which are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of
activities, regardless of whether cash is received or paid. The statement of net position presents
information on all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, and
reports the difference as net position. The statement of activities presents information showing how the
net position changed during the fiscal year. Over time, increases or decreases in the Authority’s net
position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

The fund financial statements include the balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance and are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Fund financial statements keep track of specific sources of funding
and spending for particular purposes. The Authority has only one fund, which is a governmental fund.
The fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Authority’s program.
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide
statements, we provide additional information that explains the relationship (or differences) between
them.



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 38 of 72
LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Government-wide Financial Statement Analysis
Statement of Net Position:

The following table summarizes the net position of the Authority at June 30, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016 Change
Assets
Current assets $ 40,176,191  $ 39541,097 $ 635,094
Capital assets, net 15,105,690 13,424,016 1,681,674
Total assets 55,281,881 52,965,113 2,316,768
Deferred outflows of resources 7,071,556 2,688,593 4,382,963
Liabilities
Current liabilities 1,716,482 1,629,923 86,559
Noncurrent liabilities 2,851,763 2,566,846 284917
Net pension liability 29,529,705 24271776 5,251,929
Total liabilities 34,097,950 28474,545 5,623,405
Deferred inflows of resources 928,604 2,034,996 (1,106,392)
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 15,105,690 13,424,016 1,681,674
Unrestricted 12,221,193 11,720,149 501,044
Total net position $ 27326883 § 25144165 § 2182718

As the above table indicates, total assets increased by $2.3 million during the year ended June 30, 2017.
The increase in total assets during the year ended June 30, 2017 is due to increases of current assets and
capital assets of $0.6 million and $1.7 million, respectively. The increase of current assets was mainly due
to the increase of cash and investments by $0.6 million from current year operations. The increase of
capital assets by $1.7 million was due to current year additions of $2.6 million for replacement of
equipment offset by $0.9 million of current year depreciation.

Total liabilities, excluding net pension liability, increased by $0.4 million mainly due to timing of
payments.

The Authority implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 during the year
ended June 30, 2015. Changes in the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources amounts between the years are expected. Additional information on the Authority’s
pension plan can be found in Note 4 of this report.



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 39 of 72
LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Statement of Activities:
The statement of activities identified the various revenues and expenses items, which impact the changes
in net position. The following table summarizes the changes in net position for the years ended

June 30, 2017 and 2016.

2017 2016 Change

Program expenses - Education - Library operations $ 45,039,142 $ 38,435,023 $ 6,604,119

Program revenues

Charges for service 569,314 575453 (6,139)
Operating grants and contributions 2,796,547 2,185,666 610,881
Total program revenues ‘ 3,365,861 2,761,119 604,742
General revenues :
Property taxes 34,857,893 32,553,792 2,304,101
Library special taxes 5,855,800 5,771,896 83,904
Investment earnings 332,366 215,375 116,991
Other revenues 2,809,940 3,116,067 (306,127)
Total general revenues 43,855,999 41,657,130 2,198,869
Total revenues 47,221,860 44,418,249 2,803,611
Change in net position 2,182,718 5,983,226 (3,800,508)
Net position, beginning of year 25,144,165 19,160,939 5,983,226
Net position, end of year $ 27,326,883 $ 25,144,165 $ 2,182,718

As the above table indicates, the Authority’s changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2017
decreased by $3.8 million when compared to the year ended June 30, 2016. The decrease was mainly due
to the increase of program expenses by $6.6 million offset by the increase of total revenues by $2.8
million. The increase of program expenses was mainly the result of a) increase in salaries and benefits
expenses by $3.1 million due to cost of living adjustments and increase in pension costs; b) increase in
services and supplies by $1.5 million related to replacement of non-capitalizable public and staff
computers; c¢) one-time intergovernmental expenditures of $1.5 million to the Los Altos Library
Endowment for the Los Altos Library project. The increase of total revenues of $2.8 million was mainly
due to the increase of property taxes by $2.3 million as a result of increased property assessed values.

Financial Analysis of the Authority’s Governmental Fund

The analysis of the Authority’s governmental fund is mainly covered by the discussion of its government-
wide statements above. Revenues increased as a result of increased property assessed values.
Expenditures increased due to the increases in salaries and benefits expenditures of $1.8 million, services
and supplies expenditures of $1.5 million, intergovernmental expenditures to the Los Altos Library
Endowment of $1.5 million, and capital outlay of $2.4 million mainly related to the replacement of
capitalizable public and staff computers.



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 40 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budgetary Analysis for General Fund

Total actual revenues of $47.2 million exceeded budgeted revenues of $42.8 million by $4.4 million.
Actual taxes revenue exceeded budgeted revenues by $2.7 million due to higher than expected increase in
property taxes. Total budgeted appropriations of $48.6 million were less than actual charges to
appropriations of $73.5 million by $24.8 million. These cost savings mainly resulted from unspent
appropriations of $3.3 million for services and supplies, and $21.5 million remaining in contingency
reserves.

Capital Assets

The Authority’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of June 30, 2017 was
$15.1 million. The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, and
equipment and vehicles. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Authority purchased capital assets of $2.6
million and recorded depreciation expense totaled to $0.9 million Additional information on the
Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets

The Authority’s revenues are expected to grow modestly allowing for maintenance of current service
levels. In August 2013, qualified electors of the Community Facilities District approved the extension of
the library special tax for the next 20 years which assure the continuation of funding in excess of five
million dollars annually for library hours and materials.

Request for Information
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to the Library Joint Powers Authority of Santa Clara County, 1370 Dell
Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008.



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 41 of 72
LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activity
June 30, 2017

Assets

Cash and investments $ 39,624,540
Other receivables 387,151
Due from other governmental agencies 164,500

Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 2,091,800
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 13,013,890
Total assets 55,281,881

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension related items 7,071,556
Liabilities
Accounts payable 669,224
Accrued salaries and benefits 929,434
Due to other governmental agencies 7,008
Unearned revenue 110,816
Net pension liability 29,529,705
Accrued vacation and sick leave:
Due within one year 219,273
Due beyond one year 2,632,490
Total liabilities 34,097,950

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension related items 928,604

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 15,105,690
Unrestricted 12,221,193
Total net position $ 27,326,883

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

7



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 42 of 72
LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Statement of Activities - Governmental Activity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program expenses:

Education - Library operations $§ 45,039,142
Program revenues:
Charges for service 569,314
Operating grants and contributions 2,796,547
Total program revenues 3,365,861
Net program expense (41,673,281)
General revenues: .
Property taxes 34,857,893
Library special taxes 5,855,800
Investment income 332,366
Other 2,809,940
Total general revenues 43,855,999
Change in net position 2,182,718
Net position, beginning of year 25,144,165
Net position, end of year $ 27,326,883

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

8



LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF

SANTA CLARA COUNTY

(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)

Balance Sheet - General Fund
June 30, 2017

Assets

Cash and investments
Other receivables
Due from other governmental agencies

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Due to other governmental agencies
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balance

Unassigned
Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activity:

Fund balance

Amounts reported for governmental activity in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activity are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported
in the governmental fund.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources for pension items
are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the governmental fund.

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the governmental fund.
Net pension liability
Accrued vacation and sick leave

Net position of governmental activity

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

9

$

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 43 of 72

39,624,540
387,151
164,500

$

40,176,191

$

669,224
929,434

7,008
110,816

1,716,482

38,459,709

38,459,709

40,176,191

38,459,709

15,105,690

7,071,556
(928,604)

(29,529,705)
(2,851,763)

$

27,326,883




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 44 of 72
LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues:
Taxes 34,857,893
Library special taxes 5,855,800
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 548,507
Interest and investment income 332,366
Intergovernmental revenues 2,796,547
Charges for services 20,807
Other revenue 2,809,940
Total revenues 47,221,860
Expenditures:
Education - library operations:
Salaries and benefits 27,697,581
Services and supplies 9,307,910
Books and materials 5,535,253
Intergovernmental 1,506,538
Capital outlay 2,626,774
Total expenditures 46,674,056
Excess of revenues over expenditures 547,804
Other Financing Sources:
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 731
Net change in fund balance 548,535
Fund balance, beginning of year 37,911,174
Fund balance, end of year 38,459,709

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

10




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 45 of 72

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF
SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund to the
Government-Wide Statement of Activities - Governmental Activity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Net change in fund balance $ 548,535

Amounts reported for governmental activity in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital assets additions as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for capital assets 2,626,774
Depreciation expense (945,100)

Pension contribution made subsequent to the measurement date is an
expenditure in the governmental fund, but reported as a deferred
outflows of resources in the government-wide financial statements. 2,961,615

Pension expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. (2,724,189)

The net change in accrued vacation and sick leave reported in the statement
of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental fund. (284,917)

Change in net position of governmental activity $ 2,182,718

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

11



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 46 of 72

This page left intentionally blank.

12



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 47 of 72
LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

During fiscal year 1994, the cities of Campbell, Cupertino, Gilroy, Los Altos, Los Altos Hills,
Milpitas, Monte Sereno, Morgan Hill, and Saratoga (Cities), as well as the County of Santa Clara
(County), political subdivisions of the State of California, created the Library Joint Powers
Authority of Santa Clara County (Authority) in accordance with the Chapter 5 of Division 7 of
Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California (commencing with Section 6500). The
purpose of the Authority is to create a coordinated program among the entities to enhance and
efficiently provide library services to the residents of the unincorporated areas of the County and
the Cities.

The Authority is a separate legal entity that is an integral part of the County. The governing body
of the Authority (Governing Board) comprises one council member from each city and two
County Board of Supervisors members designated by the County Executive. The County
exercises significant financial and management control over the Authority. The County’s Board
of Supervisors adopts the Authority’s budget as approved by its Governing Board and as
recommended by the County Executive. The Authority and the County have a financial and
operational relationship which requires that the Authority’s financial statements be blended into
the County’s financial statements. Therefore, the Authority is considered a blended component
unit of the County, and its financial activities are included into the County’s basic financial
statements.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The Authority’s government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. Liabilities expected to be paid after one year is recorded in the
government-wide financial statements as a noncurrent liability due in more than one year.

The Authority’s fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when “susceptible to
accrual” (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the
amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means that revenues are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, except for property taxes, the Authority considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 120 days of the end of the current year. Revenues meeting
this availability criteria include fines, forfeitures, and penalties; intergovernmental revenues;
charges for services; and others. Property tax revenues are recognized in the current year if they
are collected within 60 days of year-end. Revenues not considered available are recorded as
deferred inflows of resources. Expenditures are generally recorded when the fund liability is
incurred.

The Authority reports only one fund, which is the Authority’s operating fund that accounts for all
of its financial resources and activities.

13



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 48 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Authority receives funding for specific programs that is restricted to the operation of these
programs. The Authority also receives unrestricted revenues from different funding sources.
When restricted program expenses are incurred, it is the Authority’s policy to first apply revenues
from the restricted sources to these programs and then apply unrestricted general revenues.

Cash and Investments

All of the Authority’s cash and investments are deposited in the County Treasurer’s pool.
Investments in the pool are made in accordance with the County’s investment policy as approved
by the Board of Supervisors. The County’s Treasury Oversight Committee is responsible for the
regulatory oversight of the County Treasurer’s pool. Investments are stated at fair value in
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Pools and GASB
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. However, the value of the pool
shares in the County Treasurer’s pool that may be withdrawn is determined on an amortized cost
basis, which is different from the fair value of the Authority’s position in the pool. Interest earned
from time deposits and investments is allocated quarterly to the Fund based on its average daily
cash balance. At June 30, 2017, the County’s Treasurer’s pool has a weighted average to maturity
of 528 days and is unrated. The Authority’s investments in the County Treasury’s Pool are
exempt from fair value hierarchy disclosure. Additional information regarding deposit and
investment custodial credit, interest rate, credit, and concentration of credit risks of the County’s
Treasury pool can be found in the notes to the County’s basic financial statements.

Property Tax

The reported lien date is January 1 for secured and unsecured property taxes. In accordance with
Government Code Section 29100, on or before September 1, the County’s Board shall adopt the
rates of taxes on the secured roll. The County’s Tax Collector then completes the tax bill
processing by the end of September. The Revenue and Taxation Code specifies that the Tax
Collector shall issue secured tax bill by November 1.

The due dates and delinquency dates for secured taxes are as follows:

e Due date for the first installment is November 1 and delinquent after December 10.
e Due date for the second installment is February 1 and delinquent after April 10.

In fiscal year 1994, the Board adopted the Alternative Method of Tax Apportionment (the Teeter
Plan). Under this method, the County distributes 100% of the secured tax levy to participating
jurisdictions including the Authority regardless of collections. To cover losses on delinquent tax
sales, the County maintains a Tax Losses Reserve Fund. In return, the County receives all future
delinquent tax payments otherwise due to the Authority.

14



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 49 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include equipment and vehicles, are valued at historical cost. Donated
capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service
concession arrangement are valued at their acquisition value. Capital assets are defined as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Capital assets used in operations are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives in the government-wide statements. The estimated useful lives are between
5 to 50 years for buildings and improvements and between 5 to 15 years for equipment and
vehicles.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave

Accrued unpaid vacation and sick leave are recorded as a liability when future payments for such
compensated absences have been earned by employees based on pay and salary rates in effect at
year-end. This liability is recorded in the government-wide statement of net position to reflect
the Authority’s obligation to fund such costs from future operations. The Authority includes its
share of Social Security and Medicare payments made on behalf of the employees in its accrual
for compensated absences. The Authority does not accrue for compensated absences in its
governmental fund statements and recognizes liabilities for compensated absences only if they
are due and payable in an event such as termination. At June 30, 2017, the Authority recorded
accrued vacation and sick leave liability in the amount of $2,851,763, which was an increase of
$284,917 from the prior year’s liability.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Pension Plan

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
County’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans and additions
to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Plan
member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.
Investments are reported at fair value.

15



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 50 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27 requires that the reported results pertain to liability and asset information
within certain defined timeframes. Liabilities are based on the results of actuarial calculations
performed as of June 30, 2016. For this report, the following timeframes are used for the
Authority’s pension plan:

Valuation Date (VD)............... June 30, 2015
Measurement Date (MD)...... June 30, 2016
Measurement Period (MP).... July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016

Effects of New Pronouncements

The Authority is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact of
the GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions. Statement No. 75 revises and establishes new accounting and financial
reporting requirements for governments that provide their employees with postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB) and requires additional OPEB disclosures. GASB Statement
No. 75 is effective for the Authority’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

Net Position

The Authority’s government-wide financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net
position of the Authority is comprised of the following:

Net Investment in Capital Assets groups all capital assets into one component of net position.
Accumulated depreciation reduces the balance in this category.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the Authority not restricted
for any project or purpose. v

Fund Balance

Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions, the Authority reports the fund balance for governmental funds in specific
classifications (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned), which create a
hierarchy primarily based on the extent to which the Authority is bound to the constraints on the
specific purposes for which funds can be spent. Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts
that are (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
The “not in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to
cash, for example: inventories, prepaid amounts, and long-term notes receivable. Restricted fund
balances are amounts when constraints placed on use of resources are either: (1) externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. Unassigned fund balances are the residual classification for the General
Fund and includes all amounts not contained in the other classifications. The Authority will
spend the most restricted dollars in accordance with restrictions imposed before the less restricted
dollars.

16



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 51 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2017 follows:

Balance at Transfers / Balance at
July 1, 2016 Additions Retirements ~ Adjustments June 30, 2017

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 2091800 $ - $ - $ & $ 2,091,800
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 10,996,770 - - - 10,996,770
Equipment and vehicles 6,647,257 2,626,774 (45,585) - 9,228,446
Total capital assets, being depreciated 17,644,027 2,626,774 (45,585) - 20,225,216
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements - (219,935) - (586,494) (806,429)
Equipment and vehicles (6,311,811) (725,165) 45,585 586,494 (6,404,897)
Total accumulated deprecation (6,311,811) (945,100) 45,585 - (7,211,326)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 11,332,216 1,681,674 - - 13,013,890
Total capital assets, net $ 13424016 $ 1,681,674 § - $ A $ 15,105,690

Depreciation expense for the current year amounted to $945,100 was charged to the education —
library operations function.

NOTE 4- PENSION PLAN
General Information

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the County’s
CalPERS defined benefit pension plans. CalPERS acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for various local and state governmental agencies within the State of
California. Benefit provisions and other requirements are established by State statute, employer
contract with CalPERS and by County resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that
include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov. The
Authority participants in a cost-sharing arrangement in the County’s Miscellaneous Plan, an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit plan.

17



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 52 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 4- PENSION PLAN (Continued)

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on a final average compensation period of 36 months. The cost of living adjustments
for the CalPERS plans are applied as specified by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
Law. The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), which took effect in
January 2013, changes the way CalPERS retirement and health benefits are applied, and places
compensation limits on members. As such members who established CalPERS membership on or
after January 1, 2013 are known as “PEPRA” members.

The CalPERS’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017 for the County’s Miscellaneous
Plan are summarized as follows:

Prior to On or after

Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55, 0

2.5% @55 2% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62
Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 6.500%
Required employer contribution rates 18.978% 18.978%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for
the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) is determined annually on an actuarial basis as of
June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by public employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the
employer contribution recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability was $2,688,593.

Net Pension Liability

The Authority’s net pension liability in the County’s Miscellaneous Plan is measured as the
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of the County’s
Miscellaneous Plan is measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015
rolled forward to June 30, 2016 using standard update procedures. The Authority’s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on the projection of the Authority’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating County
departments, actuarially determined.

18



LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF
SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 4- PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 53 of 72

The change in the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2017
(measurement date June 30, 2016) and 2016 (measurement date June 30, 2015) for the County’s

Miscellaneous Plan are as follows:

Proportion of the
Net Pension County's
Liability Miscellaneous Plan
Proportion - Measurement date June 30, 2016 $ 29,529,705 1.10%
Proportion - Measurement date June 30, 2015 24,277,776 1.12%
Change $ 5,251,929 -0.02%

Pension Expense and Pension Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Authority recognized pension expense of $2,724,189. At
June 30, 2017, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the following sources:

Pension contributions subsequent to

measurement date

Changes of assumptions

Differences between expected and actual

experiences

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on plan investments

Total

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of
Resources Resources
$ 2,961,615 $ -
- 856,123
108,751 72,481
4,001,190 -
$ 7,071,556 $ 928,604

$2,961,615 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending

June 30, 2018.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Outflows/(Inflows)
Year ended June 30 of Resources
2018 $ 149,267
2019 149,267
2020 1,844,380
2021 1,038,423
Total

$ 3,181,337

19



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 54 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 4- PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions
A summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the total pension liability

as of June 30, 2016 is provided below, including any assumptions that differ from those used in
the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation.

Valuation date June 30, 2015
Measurement date June 30, 2016
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal cost method
Investment rate of return 7.65%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Inflation 2.75%
Projected salary increases Varies by entry age and service
“Discount rate 7.65%
Post retirement benefit increase Contract COLA up to 2.75% until purchasing power allowance floor
on purchasing power applies, 2.75% thereafter
Mortality Rate Derived using CalPERS membership data for all funds*

* The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table,
please refer to the CalPERS 2014 experience study report available on the CalPERS website.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary
increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at
CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan,
CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing of the plans, the tests
revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.65 percent discount rate is
appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-
term expected discount rate of 7.65 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees
Retirement Fund. The cash flows used in the testing were developed assuming that both members
and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years.
The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report”
that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into
account both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund (Public Employees’ Retirement Fund) cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’
asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first

20



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 55 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 4- PENSION PLAN (Continued)

10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using
both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the
single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one
percent.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and
asset allocation. The target allocation shown was adopted by the CalPERS Board effective on
July 1, 2015.

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years - 10 Years 11+ >
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 20.00 0.99 2.43
Inflation Sensitive 6.00 0.45 3.36
Private Equity 10.00 6.83 6.95
Real Estate 10.00 4.50 5.13
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00 4.50 5.09
Liquidity 1.00 (0.55) (1.05)

An expected inflation of 2.5 percent used for this period.
An expected inflation of 3.0 percent used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of the
measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.65 percent, as well as what the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point
lower (6.65 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.65 percent) than the current rate:

Current
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
-1% (6.65%) (7.65%) +1% (8.65%)
Authority's proportionate share of the County's
Miscellaneous Plan net pension liability $ 43205217 $ 29,529,705 § 18,192,350

21



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 56 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 5 — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

Plan Description

The County’s defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan provides healthcare benefits to
eligible employees and their surviving spouse. All County employees hired prior to
August 12, 1996, with at least five years of service after attaining age 50 are covered under the
County’s OPEB Plan upon retirement. For employees hired after August 12, 1996, and on or
before June 18, 2006, the eligibility requirements are a minimum of eight years of service after
attaining age 50. For employees hired after June 18, 2006, and mostly on or before September
30, 2013, the eligibility requirements are a minimum of ten years of service after attaining age 50
(age 52 for employees hired on or after January 1, 2013). For a majority of the employees hired
after September 30, 2013, the eligibility requirements were increased to a minimum of fifteen
years of services after attaining age 52. All employees must retire from CalPERS directly from
the County to become eligible. As a component unit of the County, the Authority shares in the
risks, rewards and costs including benefit costs with the County. The Authority presents the
related postemployment healthcare benefit disclosures as a participant in a cost-sharing
arrangement with the County.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the County are established and may be
amended by the County’s Board of Supervisors. The County has determined the Authority’s
Annual Required Contribution and OPEB cost based upon an actuarial valuation performed in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45. The County’s 2017 annual required contributions,
based on the County’s June 30, 2016 actuarial reports, were $154.9 million. For the years ended
June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, the Authority paid $1,922,075, $1,949,312, and $1,701,999,
respectively, as requested by the County.

Information regarding the County’s Postemployment Healthcare Plan contribution requirements,
funding status and progress can be found in the County’s basic financial statements.

NOTE 6 — LIBRARY SPECIAL TAXES

During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Library Joint Powers Authority of Santa Clara County
Community Facilities District No. 2005-1 (CFD 2005-1) was established pursuant to the Mello-
Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the Act). The Authority levies and the County collects
library special taxes revenues within CFD 2005-1 for library services through June 30, 2015. On
May 28, 2013, the Governing Board adopted resolutions that established the Library Joint Powers
Authority of Santa Clara County Community Facilities District No.2013-1 (CFD 2013-1)
pursuant to the Act, authorized the levy of the library special taxes within the CFD 2013-1 for
library services, and called an election within the CFD 2013-1 on the proposition of levying the
library special taxes within the CFD 2013-1 and establishing an appropriation limit for the CFD
2013-1. On August 27, 2013, an election was held in which the qualified electors of the
CFD 2013-1 approved the proposition by more than the two-thirds vote required by the Act. The
approved library special taxes represented a continuation of the taxes levied for the CFD 2005-1
and will be levied commencing in fiscal year 2015 and in each fiscal year thereafter until fiscal
year 2034. During the year ended June 30, 2017, library special taxes in the amount of
$5,855,800 was received and earned by the Authority.

22



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 57 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 7 - OVERHEAD ALLOCATION

The Authority is allocated a portion of indirect expenditures from the County for services
provided by central service departments to all County departments. Central service departments
include the Controller’s Office, County Counsel, General Services Agency and Employee
Services Agency. For the year ended June 30, 2017, indirect expenditures allocated to the
Authority amounted to $548,003 and were recorded as a component of services and supplies
expenditures in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance.

23



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 58 of 72

General Fund Budgetary Schedule

24



LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budgetary fund balances, beginning of year

Resources (inflows):
Taxes
Library special taxes
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Interest and investment income
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenue
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Total resources (inflows) available for appropriation

Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Education:
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies
Capital assets
Intergovernmental
Reserves

Total charges to appropriations (outflows)

Budgetary fund balances, end of year

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 59 of 72

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amount (Negative)
$ 37,911,174 $ 37911,174 § 37,911,174 § -
32,179,367 32,179,367 34,857,893 2,678,526
6,000,000 6,000,000 5,855,800 (144,200)
750,500 750,500 548,507 (201,993)
100,000 100,000 332,366 232,366
2,057,910 2,456,400 2,796,547 340,147
14,000 14,000 20,807 6,807
270,000 1,284,749 2,809,940 1,525,191
- - 731 731
41,371,777 42,785,016 47,222,591 4,437,575
28,096,701 28,520,191 27,697,581 822,610
18,966,222 19,796,643 16,525,822 3,270,821
3,663,945 3,666,691 2,904,182 762,509
- - 1,506,538 (1,506,538)
21,470,723 21,470,723 - 21,470,723
72,197,591 73,454,248 48,634,123 24,820,125
$ 7085360 $ 7,241,942 § 36,499,642 $ 29,257,700

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures:

Sources/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total resources"
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP:

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets are inflows of budgetary resources

but are not revenues for financial reporting purposes

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures

and changes in fund balance

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations”

from the budgetary comparison schedule
Differences - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for services and supplies ordered but not received is reported

in the year the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year services

are incurred or supplies received for financial reporting purposes

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures

and changes in fund balance

See accompanying notes to the schedule.

25

$ 47,222,591

(731)

8 47221860

$ 48,634,123

(1,960,067)

$ 46,674,056



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF Page 60 of 72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Authority proposes a budget that is approved by its Governing Board and adopted by the County
Board of Supervisors during the year. This budget is based on anticipated revenues and expenditures for
the current year.

Budgeted revenues and expenditures in the budgetary comparison schedule represent the original budget
and the final budget modified by authorized adjustments during the year. Budget amounts include
reappropriated amounts for prior year encumbrances. The Authority has been granted spending authority
by the County Board of Supervisors and may not exceed budgeted expenditures in total for the Authority.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary accounting. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are
reported as restricted fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Budgetary Results of Operations Reconciled to Results of Operations in Accordance with GAAP

The Authority’s budget is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a budget basis rather than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) basis. The results of
operations on a budget basis differ from operations on a GAAP basis due to the inclusion of year-end
encumbrances as expenditures on a budget basis.

26



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 61 of 72

LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF
SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Last Three Fiscal Years *

Fiscal year 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
Measurement period 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
Authority's proportion of the net pension liability (NPL) 1.10% 1.12% 1.14%
Authority's proportionate share of the NPL $ 29,529,705 $ 24,277,776 $ 22,190,083
Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 14,786,912 $ 14,156,600 $ 13,597,870
Authority's proportionate share of the NPL

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 199.70% 171.49% 163.19%

County Miscellaneous Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the County Miscellaneous Plan's total pension liability 71.24% 75.50% 77.25%

Note to schedule:

Benefit Changes - The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which occurred after
June 30, 2015 valuation date. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit
(a.k.a. Golden Handshakes).

Changes of Assumptions - The discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent starting
measurement period 2014-15.

* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was the first year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, therefore only three years of
information is shown.

27



LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF
SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Authority Contributions
Last Four Fiscal Years *

Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 62 of 72

Fiscal Year Ended 2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required contributions (actuarially determined) (CRC) 2,961,615 $ 2,688,593 $ 2,372,720 $ 2,147,652
Contributions in relation to the CRC (2,961,615) (2,688,593) (2,372,720) (2,147,652)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - S - $ - 3 -
Covered-employee payroll $15,628,575 $ 14,786,912 $ 14,156,600 $ 13,597,870
Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 18.95% 18.18% 16.76% 15.79%

See accompanying notes to the schedule of Authority contributions.

* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was the first year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, therefore only four years of information is

shown.

28



LIBRARY JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY OF
SANTA CLARA COUNTY
(A Component Unit of the County of Santa Clara, California)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Notes to the Schedule of Authority Contributions

June 30, 2017

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions were as follows:

Actuarially determined contribution
for fiscal year.
Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method..
Asset valuation method
Inflation.................
Salary increases.
Payroll growth.......
Investment rate of return

Retirement age.........cuuimmmsmvansiss

Mottality sssusmamsmmssasems

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2014
Entry age normal
Actuarial value of assets
2.75%
Varies by entry age and service
3.00%
7.50%, net of pension plan
investment and administrative
expenses, includes inflation
The probabilities of retirement
are based on the 2014 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period
1997 to 2011.
The probabilities of mortality are
based on the 2014 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period from
1997 to 2011. Pre-retirement and Post-
retirement mortality rates include 5
years of projected mortality
improvement using Scale BB
published by the Society of Actuaries.

June 30, 2016
June 30, 2013
Entry age normal
Actuarial value of assets
2.75%
Varies by entry age and service
3.00%
7.50%, net of pension plan
investment and administrative
expenses, includes inflation
The probabilities of retirement
are based on the 2010 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period
1997 to 2007.
The probabilities of mortality are
based on the 2010 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period from
1997 to 2007. Pre-retirement and Post-
retirement mortality rates include 5
years of projected mortality
improvement using Scale AA
published by the Society of Actuaries.

29

Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 63 of 72

June 30, 2015

June 30, 2012

Entry age normal

Actuarial value of assets

2.75%
Varies by entry age and service
3.00%

7.50%, net of pension plan
investment and administrative
expenses, includes inflation

The probabilities of retirement
are based on the 2010 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period
1997 to 2007.

The probabilities of mortality are
based on the 2010 CalPERS

Experience Study for the period from
1997 to 2007. Pre-retirement and Post-
retirement mortality rates include 5
years of projected mortality
improvement using Scale AA
published by the Society of Actuaries.



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 64 of 72

This page left intentionally blank.

30



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018

Certified Page 65 of 72
Public
Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Governing Board of the
Library Joint Powers Authority of Santa Clara County
Campbell, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activity and the major fund of the Library Joint Powers Authority of Santa Clara County (Authority), a
component unit of the County of Santa Clara (County), California, as of and for the year ended
June 30,2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 17, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP
2121 N. California Boulevard, Suite 750

Walnut Creek, CA 94596 www.mgocpa.com

31



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 66 of 72

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mhcias G ,{/ OCoel (5P

Walnut Creek, California
April 17,2018

32



Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 67 of 72
. santa cla ra
I f b ra ryd|stnct
Services & Support Center, 1370 Dell Avenue, Campbell, CA 95008-6604 | www.sccl.org | 408-293-2326
FC-6 JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
05/15/18 BOARD TRANSMITTAL
DATE: May 15, 2018
TO: Joint Powers Authority Board - Finance Committee
FROM: Nancy Howe, County Librarian W
SUBJECT: ANNUAL REVIEW OF CAPITAL MAINTENANCE PLAN
RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that the Finance Committee receive the status of the JPA Board-
approved Ten-Year Capital Maintenance Plan

BACKGROUND/REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

On October 24, 2013, the Board approved the Ten-Year Capital Maintenance Plan
("CMP") from fiscal year 2014-2015 through fiscal year 2023-2024. The CMP does not
constitute an approval to expend funds; instead, this plan provides the basis for the
establishment of a capital maintenance reserve based on estimated needs anticipated
throughout the County Library system. Actual approval for expenditure of these reserved
funds occurs during the acceptance of the annual budget in June. The CMP is updated
every five years, with the next update scheduled for October 2018. Until that time, the
CMP is reviewed annually.

Budget and Reserves

The current amount in the Building Reserve designated for the CMP is $5,904,000. As
proposed for the 2018-19 budget, $490,000 of the fiscal year 2018-19 CMP amount is
being recommended for the following projects:

Saratoga Roof Restoration: $205,000
Milpitas Library Interior Space: $200,000
Milpitas Interior Painting: $45,000
Milpitas Exterior Auto Doors: $40,000

The only amounts not recommended for fiscal year 2018-19 is the $400,000 earmarked

for Los Altos Public Furniture (to be moved to fiscal year 2022-23) and the $200,000 for
Gilroy Interior Space (which was already approved to Fiscal Year 2017-18).

Serving the unincorporated areas of Santa Clara County and the ities of Campbell | Cupertino | Gilroy | Los Altos | Los Altos Hills | Milpitas | Monte Sereno | Morgan Hill | Saratoga



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 68 of 72

In addition the following CMP projects are being carried forward from fiscal year 2017-
18 to fiscal year 2018-19:

1344 Dell Architectural and Construction Management: $750,000
Los Altos Room: $460,000

Campbell Roof: $245,000

Cupertino Interior Space: $200,000

Morgan Hill Interior Space: $200,000

Gilroy Interior Space: $200,000

Gilroy and Milpitas HVAC Units: $75,000

The next full update of the CMP will occur in October 2018.



Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 69 of 72

gjo} XS|X'9L0Z-10 s1epdn ue|d Julei [ended "HA 01\1Z8.LO0 LAMOORNO JUSJUOD\SYIBDISN \SMOPUIA\LOSOLDIN\ [0 T\eYeadd\iebiaqua|is [\S1osN\:D
000°096‘T 000°08L 0 000002 000002 00009 000°09% 000'ST 0 000'SPC [exol
000002 000002 doeds Jolayu|
000°0S. 3uip(ing |12Q t¥ET
00009 000°'st7T doe(day - Jooy
000°0€ 10| SupjJed |easay
n 00009 000°ST HUN DVAH
8T0C-LT0T
000569 0 000°0S 000002 000'S€ 0 000°00¢ 0 000002 0000T [elol
000°0S 000°00¢ 000°00T doeds Jolau|
000°s€ Jousiu| Sunuied
10}eA3|3 MoaN
000°00C sise|jeg Sunysn
HUN DVAH
00001 $100Q 0INY JO1I21X]
L102-9T0C
000°T¥L 0 0000T 00009 000°T€ 000°00T 000°ST 000°0€ 000'SZ 000°0z€ [e3oL
000°0ST Jo1ens|3 MaN
00009 Jouau| Sunuied
00002 000002 000'SL 000'ST sise|jed Sunysn
000TT 000'ST 000°0€ 000'SST HUN DVAH
00001 $100( 01Ny JOLI3IX]
9T0¢-ST0C
TVL1OLYVIA | ¥ILNIDSS | ANVIAOOM | VOHOLVYUVS | TIIH NVOUOW | SVLIdTIN | SOLIV SO1 AOYT1ID | ONILYIdND | T1IFdNVD
$107 15GU950 QISIATY ST-v20Z Ysnoayr 91-ST0T suseA1eaqi|

€T0T 419703100 paJedald

ue|d asueuljuielAl jeude) Jeap 0T

elep ejues




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 70 of 72

gio¢ Xs[X'9102-10 8jepdn ue|d juley [exded "HA 01\1Z8LIOD LAY00RNQO Jusjuod\aydeJIsN[\smopuipp\osoudlp[edoT\ejeaddy\abiaqua|s [\sJasn\:D
000'STL 000'S. 000°0S 0 0 000061 000°00C 0 000°00T 0 |elol
000°0S 000°00C 000°00T aoeds Jouau]
000°00T uo1el031say - Jooy
000'GL sise|leg Sunysn
00006 HUN DVAH
T202-020¢
000005 0 000°0€ 0 000'S8 0 000'ST 000°0TT 000°St 000'STC |elol
000°00C 2oeds Jouaqu]
000°0€ 000S8 Uo11e1031S3Y J0OY
Jouaiu| Sunuied
000°0S sise|jeg Sunysr
000'ST 000°09 HUN DVAH
000°SY 000'ST $100( 0INY J01IIX]
020¢-6T0C
000°060°T 0 0 000'50C 0 000582 000‘00t 000°00C 0 0 |elol
000‘00¢ 000002 2oeds Jouau]
000°s0T UOI1e103S3Y J00Y
000'SY Jouau| Sunuied
HUN JDVAH
000°‘00% 21|gnd - "udn4
000°0% $100( 01Ny J01I21X]
6T0¢C-8T0¢C
TVLOL HVIA | Y¥3ILNIDSS | ANVIAOOM | VOOLVHVS | T1IH NVOUHOW | SVLIdTIN SOL1V SO1 AOY1ID ONILY3IdND | T139dIANVD

ST0C 42quiad3Q d3SINIY

€T0Z 49qo310 pasedald

GZ-20¢ Ysnoiyi 9T1-S10T
ue|d dueuajuie|pl j[eyde) Jea 0T

uu_tm_u>,.,_;m.n_n_— v

elep ejues |




Finance Committee

May 15, 2018
Page 71 of 72

€40¢

Xs|X'9102-10 ajepdn ueld Jurely [eyded YA 01\7Z8L00 LAMOORNO JUSUOD\BUYIEDISN\SMOPUIAKOSOIDIAN[Bo0T\Bleaddy\JeBiaqusjja 1\siasn\:D

000'79€'8 $

000068

$

000'8ST S

000°096'T $

000°T6S S

000'S€6 $

000'SSET S

000'S£9 $

000’08 S

00002TT $

AN3dS 4V3IA N3L
TV10L ANVYD

000'8T

000'€

000'ST

[eloL

Joua1u] Sunuied

000°€

000'ST

sise|jeg Suiysn

HUN JVAH

sJ100Q 01Ny Jo1191X3

S¢0¢-vcoc

000'09T

00009

000002

[e101

000°00T

aoeds Jouaiu|

000°09

aJnyuin4 4eis

vcozc-€ecoc

000S9‘T

000'S€

000°'ST

000'S60°T

000°0%

000°00T

000'ST

000002

000'St

[e1ol

000002

000002

doeds Jolau|

000'ST

00009

aJnjuind Jeis

000052

aJnyuand oijqnd

000's€

000'St

Jouaiu| Sunuied

000°s€

0000%

000'ST

$100(Q 01Ny JOLI9IXT

000°0SC

Sunadie)

€¢0¢-ccoc

000°0vL

000002

000°002

000'SE

000°02T

000'S8T

le1o]

000002

000002

9oeds Jolau|

000'S€

000°SY

Jolau] Sunuied

00009

sise||eg Sunysn

000°ST

HUN JVAH

000°0S

5400 01NY J0LI9IXT

000sZT

Sunaduie)

€¢0¢-TC0c

TVLOL ¥V3IA

Y3 LNIDSS

aNVY1aoom

VDOLVYVS

T1IH NVDYON

SVLIdTIN

SOL1V SO1

AOHTID

ONILd3dNnd

T139dINIVD

STOC 42quisd3Q d3SIAIY

€102 49q012Q paJedald

G2-v20Z Y3noiyl 9T-s10¢
ue|d 2aueuajuie|n jende) Jed 0T

cuseAreq
ele[d ejues




Finance Committee
May 15, 2018
Page 72 of 72

FREQUENCY GUIDELINES

EXPECTED

TYPE OF SERVICE / REPLACE LIFE

(YEARS)
Automated Doors (sliders 10) 10/ 20
Automated Doors (ADA 20)
Elevators 35
Flooring - Carpet1 10
Flooring - Cement flooring 15
(internal, sealed)
Flooring - Hardwood (refinish) 15
Flooring - Terrazo 0
(repairs only as needed)
Furniture (public) 10
Furniture (staff) 20
Hot Water Heater 10
HVAC - Controller / BMS 10
Lighting - Ballasts 8
Paint - Exterior 20
Paint - Interior 10
Parking Lot - Sealing / .
Resurfacing
Roof - Reseal /Replacement '10/ 30
Fencing 25

*When ordering new carpet, purchase only tiles & make sure the vendor has the carpet or linoleum
delivered to the location at least a week in advance for it to settle, breathe prior to installation.



	Agenda of Tuesday, May 15, 2018
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	8
	7



